
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Eastern Area Planning Committee 

Place: Wessex Room - The Corn Exchange, Market Place, Devizes, SN10 
1HS 
 

Date: Thursday 26 May 2022 

Time: 3.00 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Stuart Figini, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718221 or email 
stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Philip Whitehead (Chairman) 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Vice-
Chairman) 
Cllr Dr Brian Mathew 
Cllr Kelvin Nash 
  

Cllr Sam Pearce-Kearney 
Cllr Tony Pickernell 
Cllr Iain Wallis 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Mel Jacob 
Cllr Jerry Kunkler  

 

  
 

Cllr James Sheppard 
Cllr Caroline Thomas  

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you 
will be recorded presenting this, or this may be presented by an officer during the 
meeting, and will be available on the public record. The meeting may also be recorded 
by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 20) 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
March 2022.  

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.  
 
Statements 
 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register no later than 
10 minutes before the start of the meeting. If it is on the day of the meeting 
registration should be done in person. 
 
The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are linked to 
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to 
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application, and up to 3 
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3 
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered. 
 
Members of the public will have had the opportunity to make representations on 
the planning applications and to contact and lobby their local member and any 
other members of the planning committee prior to the meeting. Lobbying once 
the debate has started at the meeting is not permitted, including the circulation 
of new information, written or photographic which have not been verified by 
planning officers. 
 
Questions 
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular, 



 

Page 4 

 

questions on non-determined planning applications. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Thursday 19 May 2022 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. 
In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 
5pm on Monday 23 May 2022. Please contact the officer named on the front of 
this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the 
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 21 - 22) 

 To receive details of the completed and pending appeals, and any other updates 
as appropriate. 

7   Planning Applications  

 To consider and determine the following planning applications. 

 7a   PL/2021/09496 - Land at Dauntsey's School, West Lavington 
(Pages 23 - 62) 

 Development of a coach, minibus and taxi crop off/pick up area and associated 
infrastructure. 

8   Urgent items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency   

 Part II  

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed. 

 

 

NONE 



 
 
 

 
 
Eastern Area Planning Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 24 MARCH 2022 AT WESSEX ROOM - THE CORN EXCHANGE, MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES, SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Philip Whitehead (Chairman), Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Dr Brian Mathew, Cllr Kelvin Nash, Cllr Sam Pearce-Kearney, 
Cllr Tony Pickernell, Cllr Iain Wallis and Cllr Caroline Thomas (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Dominic Muns and Cllr Laura Mayes 
  
  

 
11. Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Stuart Wheeler. Cllr Wheeler was replaced 
for this meeting by Cllr Caroline Thomas. 
 

12. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2022 were presented for 
consideration. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record. 
 
(Note – Cllr Sam Pearce-Kearney and Cllr Kelvin Nash abstained from voting as 
they were either not in attendance or arrived late for the last meeting). 
 

13. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

14. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

15. Public Participation 
 
The Chairman detailed the procedure for the meeting and the procedures for 
public participation which were set put at item 5 of the agenda. 
 

16. Planning Appeals and Updates 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
To note the report on completed and pending appeals. 
 

17. Planning Applications 
 
The following planning applications were considered: 
 
 

18. PL/2021/11715 (Plot 1) - Plot 1 & Plot 2, 72 West Winds, Netherstreet, 
Bromham, SN15 2DP 
 
Public Participation: 
 

 Jeremy Payne - spoke in objection to the application 

 John Cattell – read a statement from Nigel Thomas in objection to the 
application 

 Vikki Cattell – spoke in objection to the application 

 Mike Butler – Applicant – spoke in support of the application 

 Richard Cosker – agent – spoke in support of the application 
 

Jonathan James, Senior Conservation/Planning Officer presented the report 

which recommended that planning permission be approved with conditions and 

informatives as detailed in the report, for the demolition of bungalow and 

replacement with 1 detached dwelling and associated works to include change 

of use of land to form extended residential curtilage. The Committee noted that 

the report addressed 2 separate but neighbouring applications on which 

currently there was a single plot occupied by a bungalow.  

  

The officer stated that the main issue for consideration by the Committee was 

an assessment of the merits of the proposals against the policies of the 

development plan and other material considerations, and the on-balance 

recommendation detail in the above paragraph. 

 

The officer advised that the redevelopment (and enlargement) of the combined 

site for 2 dwellings is contrary to the development plan but was previously 

accepted in principle in the granting of outline consent on 7 October 2021. That 

application did not include any details of the proposed dwellings. As individually 

the applications represent a one-for-one replacement of the existing dwelling, 

the principle is in accordance with the development plan and can be supported 

subject to impacts. The assessment of the combined application rests on the 

planning balance between the benefits  and adverse impacts of the 

development, considering the design, scale and layout of the development 

detailed in the two applications.   

 

The Officer in detailing the representations received, highlighted that there had 

been no objection from Bromham Parish Council and Wiltshire Council 

Archaeology, although some conditions had been suggested by Wiltshire 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

Council Highways. Ten local resident objections to the application had been 

received and a summary of the issues raised were detailed in the report. 

  

There were no technical questions asked by the Committee. 

 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views, as 

detailed above. 

  

The unitary division member, Cllr Laura Mayes, spoke in objection to the 

application. Cllr Mayes commented on the street scene and the mix of housing 

in the vicinity of the application site, highlighting that there was no one design, 

the large scale and bulk of the proposed dwellings, the current design blocking 

views for neighbouring properties, and urged the Committee to refuse the 

application.  

 

So that the Committee had something to debate the Chairman proposed a 

motion to approve the application, with the conditions stated at pages 33 – 36 of 

the agenda, as per the officer recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Paul 

Oatway QPM. 

  

A debate followed where Members commented on the future use of rooms to 

increase the number of bedrooms, design and scale of the dwellings, the 

comprehensive nature of the report, and the similarities in design to 

neighbouring properties. 

  

At the conclusion of the debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved drawings and details: 
 
Location Plan     LOC_1969-RM-PLAN 1 Plot 
1.dwg 
Proposed plans sections & elevations P1-rev C_1969-RM-PLAN1 
PLOT1 A.dwg 
Proposed plans sections & elevations P2-rev B_1969-RM-PLAN1 
PLOT1 A.dwg 
Protected Species Survey 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. i) No development (including works of demolition) shall commence 
until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
ii) The plan shall include details of the measures that will be taken 
to reduce and manage the emission of noise, vibration and dust 
during the construction phase of the development. 
 
iii) It shall include details of the following: 
 

a. arrangements for lorries delivering to and collecting from the 
site, 

b. hours of working (including deliveries and collection of 
demolition waste), 

c. the loading and unloading of equipment and materials, and 
d. provision on the site for storage of materials and parking of 

construction staff and contractor vehicles. 
 
iv) The demolition and construction work will be carried out fully in 
accordance with the so-approved Construction Management Plan at 
all times. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities and highway 
safety. 
 

4. i) Demolition works shall be carried out in full accordance with 
recommendations of Section 5 of the approved Protected Species 
Survey report (21 Apr 2021). 
 
ii) The dwellings shall not be first occupied until bat roosting and 
bird nesting facilities have been incorporated in the development in 
accordance with details first to have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority; such details to 
be in accordance with the recommendations of the approved 
Protected Species Survey report (21 Apr 2021).  
 
REASON In the interests of biodiversity. 

 
5. i) No development of the dwelling above ground floor slab level 

shall commence until full details of the materials and finishes to be 
used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
 
ii) The development shall not be carried out other than in full 
accordance with the so approved details.  
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 

6. i) Prior to commencement of construction of the new dwelling there 
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority full details of a surface water drainage scheme 
and maintenance requirements to be implemented on the site in 
respect of all buildings and new or replacement areas of hard 
standing.  
 
ii) There shall be no occupation of the development until the so-
approved drainage scheme has been implemented in full.  
 
iii) The drainage scheme shall thereafter be maintained in 
accordance with approved details. 
 
REASON In the interests of controlling flood risk and highway 
safety. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
============ 
 
For the suggested soakaways, the information to be submitted 
under this condition must include:  
 

 Ground investigations and infiltration testing in line 
with the requirements of the BRE Digest 365 and 
undertaken by a competent contractor are required to 
assess the feasibility of the proposed surface water 
drainage strategy. 

 Sizing calculations, construction details and a 
maintenance plan. 

 
7. i) Prior to commencement of the development above ground floor 

slab level there shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping, the details of which shall include: 
 

a. all hard and soft surfacing materials, 
b. means of enclosure, (including details of any existing fencing 

to be retained), 
c. a detailed planting plan and specification showing all plant 

species, supply and planting sizes and planting densities, 
 
ii) All so-approved planting shall be carried out no later than the 
first planting and seeding season following the first occupation of 
either building or the substantial completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner.  
 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

iii) All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 
stock. 
 
iv) Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 
 
v) All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwelling or 
in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the 
local planning authority. 
 
REASON To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development. 
 

8. i) The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into 
use until the area between the nearside carriageway edge and a line 
drawn 2.4m parallel thereto over the entire site frontage has been 
cleared of any obstruction to visibility at and above a height of 
600mm above the nearside carriageway level. 
 
ii) The above frontage visibility margin shall be maintained as such 
at all times thereafter.  
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

9. i) The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied 
until the first 5m of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway and/or whole of the parking area, has been 
consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). 
 
ii) The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The surfacing of the access must be in accordance with the details 
of hard landscaping and surface water drainage to be approved 
under the conditions above. 

 
10. Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, or within 

3 months of the substantial completion of the development 
(whichever is the sooner) all the existing buildings on site shall 
have been permanently demolished and removed from the site, the 
neighbouring site and other land shown on the approved drawings 
as being within the applicants’ control.  
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the 
area and neighbouring amenities. 

 
11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), no window, dormer window or roof light shall 
be inserted above ground floor ceiling level in the south elevation 
of the development hereby permitted. REASON: In the interests of 
residential amenity and privacy. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a 
new vehicle access/dropped kerb. The consent hereby granted shall 
not be construed as authority to carry out works on the highway. 
The applicant is advised that a licence will be required from 
Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on 
any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming 
part of the highway. Please contact our Vehicle Crossing Team on 
vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352 or visit their 
website at  http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets  to make an 
application 

 
19. PL/2021/11714 (Plot 2) - Plot 1 & Plot 2, 72 West Winds, Netherstreet, 

Bromham, SN15 2DP 
 
Note – The Committee considered the application for Plot 2 at the same time as 
Plot 1 above, as the applications were linked and shared common 
considerations. Therefore, the minute wording for Plot 1 is repeated here as the 
same issues and comments were addressed for both planning applications. 
 
Public Participation: 
 

 Jeremy Payne - spoke in objection to the application 

 John Cattell – read a statement from Nigel Thomas in objection to the 
application 

 Vikki Cattell – spoke in objection to the application 

 Mike Butler – Applicant – spoke in support of the application 

 Richard Cosker – agent – spoke in support of the application 
 

Jonathan James, Senior Conservation/Planning Officer presented the report 

which recommended that planning permission be approved with conditions and 

informatives as detailed in the report, for the demolition of bungalow and 

replacement with 1 detached dwelling and associated works to include change 

of use of land to form extended residential curtilage. The Committee noted that 

the report addressed 2 separate but neighbouring applications on which 

currently there was a single plot occupied by a bungalow.  

  

Page 11

http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets


 
 
 

 
 
 

The officer stated that the main issue for consideration by the Committee was 

an assessment of the merits of the proposals against the policies of the 

development plan and other material considerations, and the on-balance 

recommendation detail in the above paragraph. 

 

The officer advised that the redevelopment (and enlargement) of the combined 

site for 2 dwellings is contrary to the development plan but was previously 

accepted in principle in the granting of outline consent on 7 October 2021. That 

application did not include any details of the proposed dwellings. As individually 

the applications represent a one-for-one replacement of the existing dwelling, 

the principle is in accordance with the development plan and can be supported 

subject to impacts. The assessment of the combined application rests on the 

planning balance between the benefits  and adverse impacts of the 

development, considering the design, scale and layout of the development 

detailed in the two applications.   

 

The Officer in detailing the representations received, highlighted that there had 

been no objection from Bromham Parish Council and Wiltshire Council 

Archaeology, although some conditions had been suggested by Wiltshire 

Council Highways. Ten local resident objections to the application had been 

received and a summary of the issues raised were detailed in the report. 

  

There were no technical questions asked by the Committee. 

 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views, as 

detailed above. 

  

The unitary division member, Cllr Laura Mayes, spoke in objection to the 

application. Cllr Mayes commented on the street scene and the mix of housing 

in the vicinity of the application site, highlighting that there was no one design, 

the large scale and bulk of the proposed dwellings, the current design blocking 

views for neighbouring properties, and urged the Committee to refuse the 

application.  

 

So that the Committee had something to debate the Chairman proposed a 

motion to approve the application, with the conditions stated at pages 33 – 36 of 

the agenda, as per the officer recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Paul 

Oatway QPM. 

  

A debate followed where Members commented on the future use of rooms to 

increase the number of bedrooms, design and scale of the dwellings, the 

comprehensive nature of the report, and the similarities in design to 

neighbouring properties. 

  

At the conclusion of the debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved drawings and details: 
 
Location Plan LOC_1969-RM-PLAN 1 Plot 1.dwg  
Proposed plans sections & elevations P1-rev C_1969-RM-PLAN1 
PLOT 2A.dwg  
Proposed plans sections & elevations P2-rev B_1969-RM-PLAN1 
PLOT 2A.dwg  
Protected Species Survey 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 

3. i) No development (including works of demolition) shall commence 
until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
ii) The plan shall include details of the measures that will be taken 
to reduce and manage the emission of noise, vibration and dust 
during the construction phase of the development. 
 
iii) It shall include details of the following: 
 

a. arrangements for lorries delivering to and collecting from 
the site,  

b. hours of working (including deliveries and collection of 
demolition waste),  

c. the loading and unloading of equipment and materials, 
and 

d. provision on the site for storage of materials and parking 
of construction staff and contractor vehicles. 

 

 iv) The demolition and construction work will be carried out fully 
 in accordance with the so-approved Construction Management 
 Plan at all times. 
 

 REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities and highway 
 safety. 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. i) Demolition works shall be carried out in full accordance with 
recommendations of Section 5 of the approved Protected Species 
Survey report (21 Apr 2021). 
 
ii) The dwelling shall not be first occupied until bat roosting and 
bird nesting facilities have been incorporated in the development in 
accordance with details first to have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority; such details to 
be in accordance with the recommendations of the approved 
Protected Species Survey report (21 Apr 2021). 
 
REASON In the interests of biodiversity. 

 

5. i) No development of the dwelling shall commence above ground 
floor slab level until full details of the materials and finishes to be 
used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
ii) The development shall not be carried out other than in full 
accordance with the so approved details.  
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area.  

 

6. i) Prior to commencement of construction of the new dwelling there 
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority full details of a surface water drainage scheme 
and maintenance requirements to be implemented on the site in 
respect of all buildings and new or replacement areas of hard 
standing.  
 
ii) There shall be no occupation of the development until the so-
approved drainage scheme has been implemented in full.  
 
iii) The drainage scheme shall thereafter be maintained in 
accordance with approved details.  
 
REASON In the interests of controlling flood risk and highway 
safety. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
============ 
 
For the suggested soakaways, the information to be submitted 
under this condition must include: 
 
- Ground investigations and infiltration testing in line with the 

requirements of the BRE Digest 365 and undertaken by a 
competent contractor are required to assess the feasibility of the 
proposed surface water drainage strategy.  

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

- Sizing calculations, construction details and a maintenance 
plan. 

 

7. i) Prior to commencement of the development above ground floor 
slab level there shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping, the details of which shall include:  
 

a. all hard and soft surfacing materials, 
b. means of enclosure, (including details of any existing fencing 

to be retained), 
c. a detailed planting plan and specification showing all plant 

species, supply and planting sizes and planting densities, 
 

ii) All so-approved planting shall be carried out no later than the 
first planting and seeding season following the first occupation of 
either building or the substantial completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner. 
 
iii) All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 
stock. 
 
iv) Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 
 
v) All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwelling or 
in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the 
local planning authority.  
 
REASON To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development. 

 

8. i) The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into 
use until the area between the nearside carriageway edge and a line 
drawn 2.4m parallel thereto over the entire site frontage has been 
cleared of any obstruction to visibility at and above a height of 
600mm above the nearside carriageway level.  
 
ii) The above frontage visibility margin shall be maintained as such 
at all times thereafter.  
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
 

9. i) The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied 
until the first 5m of the access, measured from the edge of the 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

carriageway and/or whole of the parking area, has been 
consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). 
 
ii) The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The surfacing of the access must be in accordance with the details 
of hard landscaping and surface water drainage to be approved 
under the conditions above. 

 

10. Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, or within 
3 months of the substantial completion of the development 
(whichever is the sooner) all the existing buildings on site shall 
have been permanently demolished and removed from the site, the 
neighbouring site and other land shown on the approved drawings 
as being within the applicants’ control. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the 
area and neighbouring amenities. 

 

11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), no window, dormer window or roof light shall 
be inserted above ground floor ceiling level in the north elevation of 
the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a 
new vehicle access/dropped kerb. The consent hereby granted shall 
not be construed as authority to carry out works on the highway. 
The applicant is advised that a licence will be required from 
Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on 
any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming 
part of the highway. Please contact our Vehicle Crossing Team on 
vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk  and/or 01225 713352 or visit their 
website at http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets  to make an 
application. 

 
20. PL/2021/09496 - Land at Dauntseys School, West Lavington 

 
Public Participation: 
 

 Peter Storey – spoke in objection to the application 

 Philip Richardson – spoke in objection to the application 

 Sarah Hockin - agent spoke in support of the application 

Page 16

mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets


 
 
 

 
 
 

 Julia Ford, West Lavington Parish Council – spoke in objection to the 
application 

 
Ruaridh O’Donoghue, Senior Conservation/Planning Officer presented the 
report which recommended that planning permission be approved, for reasons 
detailed in the report, for the development of a coach, mini-bus and taxi drop-off 
/ pick up area and associated infrastructure. 
 
The officer advised that the application concerned a parcel of land at Dauntseys 
School that is located to the west of the main driveway. The site is currently 
made up of a staff car park and a netball/tennis court with associated hedging 
around the perimeter. The School is located within the limits of  development of 
West Lavington which is recognised as a Large Village within the WCS. The site 
is located within the West Lavington and Littleton Panel Conservation Area. The 
main school building is listed at grade II and opposite the site lie No.’s 7 and 9 
Cheverell Road that are also grade II listed. A public right of way runs through 
the middle of the site. 
 
The officer stated that there were no ‘in principle’ policies that indicate this form 
of development should be considered unacceptable. It was felt that the scheme 
would not have an adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the 
area and was considered to be in broad accordance with Core Policies 51 and 
57 of the WCS. The proposal will have a broadly neutral impact upon heritage 
assets and in the absence of identified harm, is considered to comply with Core 
Policy 58 of the WCS. It is noted that the greatest impact is from the presence 
of coaches on the site but, this is a temporary impact during the periods of 
school drop off and collection and therefore not a substantive ground in which to 
attach harm to.  
 
The Committee noted that the parking of coaches in this location did not require 
any form of planning consent. However, because the school had chosen to lay 
hardstanding, create pavements and erect fencing and lighting, planning 
permission is required. 
 
The officer explained that whilst subject to appropriate conditions, there are no 
technical objections raised with the application against ecology, trees or 
drainage, and is considered to accord with the development plan policy and is 
acceptable. 
 
The report detailed the responses to the consultation and representations 
received. It was noted that considerable objection had been raised in respect of 
the highways impacts of the development from local residents. The Local 
Highway Authority were satisfied that the scheme would not have a severe 
impact on users of the adjoining highway (A360). In light of NPPF para 111 they 
had not raised objection to the scheme.  
 
In response to technical questions asked by the Committee, the officer 
confirmed that coaches were currently parking to the rear of the school site and 
use either the B3098 or A360 to exit the site, existing conditions restricted 
coaches from entering the school from the B3098, therefore all coaches enter 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

the site via the A360, external lighting levels and timings for lighting would be 
conditioned, whilst a travel plan would include agreements between the coach 
operator and the school about when coach lights and engines are turned off 
during pick-up and drop-off. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views, as 
detailed above. 
 
The unitary division member, Cllr Dominic Muns spoke on the application. Cllr 
Muns indicated that he supported the schools drive to improve the safety of all 
users of the site, although he had concerns about the increase in coaches using 
the A360, other highway and environmental impacts associated with the 
development. 
 
In response to issues raised during public participation and the Unitary Member 
statement, the planning officer explained that an additional bullet point could be 
added to condition 4 in relation to external lighting, limiting the Lux levels so as 
to avoid light pollution; there would be no increase in the number of coaches 
accessing the school site; condition 8 referred to the travel plan and agreement 
in relation to switching off engines and headlights; there was no adverse impact 
on heritage assets; the opinion of the Highways Authority is that coaches exiting 
the school site onto the A360 would not cause a significant impact, however, 
coaches would not be encouraged to exit the site via the B3098 due to the width 
of the road and potential for delays due to queuing traffic.  
 
So that the Committee had something to debate the Chairman proposed a 
motion to approve the application, with reasons detailed at pages 63-66 of the 
agenda, as per the officer recommendations. 
 
A debate followed where Members expressed concern about the highways 
issues and in particular the increase in vehicles exiting the site onto the A360, 
lack of accurate traffic flow assessment and impact on neighbour amenities. 
 
Cllr Kelvin Nash originally moved that the application be refused, and this was 
seconded by Cllr Caroline Thomas. Following the debate, Cllr Nash amended 
his proposal and moved that the application be deferred for clarity on a number 
of highways issues raised during the meeting, this was seconded by Cllr 
Caroline Thomas. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
That planning permission is deferred for additional highway information. 
 

21. Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.00 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Stuart Figini of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718221, e-mail stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line ((01225) 713114 or email 

communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 19

mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Council   
Eastern Area Planning Committee 

26th May 2022 
 
Planning Appeals Received between 11/03/2022 and 13/05/2022 
Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 

COMM 
Appeal Type Officer 

Recommend 
Appeal 
Start Date 

Overturn 
at Cttee 

PL/2021/03418 2 Chestnut , Nepaul Road 
Tidworth, SP9 7EU 

Tidworth Installation of an 11m retractable 
antenna support system (mast) and 
three antennas. 

DEL Written 
Representations 

Refuse 
 

01/04/2022 No 

PL/2021/04264 Land south of Bell House, 
Lydeway, Wiltshire 
SN10 3PS 

Urchfont Outline application with all matters 
reserved for erection of 6no. 
dwellings (2no. affordable starter 
home dwellings) and associated 
development 

DEL Written 
Representations 

Refuse 
 

14/04/2022 No 

PL/2021/08120 Fosburys Field 
Crowood Lane 
Ramsbury, SN8 2SQ 

Ramsbury Conversion and extension of stable 
block and barn to holiday letting 
accommodation 

DEL Written 
Representations 

Refuse 
 

24/03/2022 No 

 
Planning Appeals Decided between 11/03/2022 and 13/05/2022 
Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL 

or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal 
Decision 

Decision 
Date 

Costs 
Awarded? 

PL/2021/04069 Upper Farm 
Wexcombe 
Marlborough, SN8 3SQ 

Grafton Conversion of an existing 
agricultural building into a 
residential dwelling (C3 Use 
Class), together with associated 
residential curtilage, 
landscaping, parking and a 
garage. The proposals also 
include the demolition and 
removal of two redundant open 
side 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Allowed with 
Conditions 

06/05/2022 None 

PL/2021/05888 Court Close Farm 
2 White Street 
Easterton, Devizes 
SN10 4NZ 

Easterton Demolition of existing pole barn; 
erection of single dwelling with 
creation of new access, parking 
and landscaping. 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 21/04/2022 None 

 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No. 

Date of Meeting 26th May 2022 

Application Number PL/2021/09496 

Site Address Land at Dauntseys School 

West Lavington 

Proposal Development of a coach, mini-bus and taxi drop-off / pick up area 

and associated infrastructure. 

Applicant Dauntseys School  

Town/Parish Council WEST LAVINGTON  

Electoral Division The Lavington’s (Cllr Muns)  

Grid Ref 400101 153763 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Ruaridh O'Donoghue 

 

Reason for the application being considered by Committee  

The application was originally called in by Councillor Muns to consider the environmental 

and highways impacts of the development. At the meeting on the 24th March 2022, the 

item was deferred to be considered at a later Committee when additional highways 

information has been compiled.  

Purpose of Addendum Report 

The purpose of this addendum report is to further consider the highways impacts 

associated with the development and to consider along with the previously identified 

issues, the recommendation that the application be approved. 

 

1. Report Summary 

The main issues to be considered are: 

 Whether the proposal would have a negative effect upon highway safety including 

if there is sufficient parking for the proposed development (CP 61 and 64); and, 

 What if any, the fallback position is? 

 

All other issues remain as presented to the Committee on the 24th March 2022.  

 

2. Site Description 

The application concerns a parcel of land at Dauntseys School that is located to the west 

of the main driveway. The site is currently made up of a staff car park and a netball/tennis 

court with associated hedging around the perimeter.  

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7a



2 

 

The School is located with limits of development (LoD) of West Lavington which is 

recognised as a Large Village within the WCS.  

 

The site is located within the West Lavington and Littleton Panel Conservation Area. The 

main school building is listed at grade II and opposite the site lie No.’s 7 and 9 Cheverell 

Road that are also grade II listed.  

 

Running through the middle of the site in a broadly north south direction is WLAV12, a 

public right of way (PRoW).  

 

Below is the location map of the proposed development within the grounds of the school. 

 

Page 24



3 

 

 

View of site looking west from Dauntseys School drive          © Google 

 

View from Cheverell Road looking East towards the site          © Google 

Page 25



4 

 

 

View from Cheverell Road at entrance to WLAV12          © Google 

 

View of site looking north from Dauntseys School drive          © Google 

Page 26



5 

 

 

View from High Street looking south towards the application site          © Google 

 

View from High Street looking west towards application site          © Google 

 

3. The Proposal 

The application proposes the development of a coach, mini-bus and taxi drop-off/pick up 

area and associated infrastructure. As part of the application, it is proposed to divert 

WLAV12 around the red line boundary of the site. However, beyond this small diversion 

around the red line boundary, it is no longer proposed to divert any other section of 

WLAV12 that passes through the school. For information purposes, whilst this diversion 

does not need planning consent (it is dealt with under separate legislation), it was included 

as part of the original application but has since been removed (save for the small section 

referred to above).  

 

Below is the proposed plan of the scheme.  

 

Page 27



6 

 

 
 

 

4. Planning Policy and Guidance 

 
See report at Appendix 1 

 
5. Relevant Planning History 

 
There is no relevant planning history pertaining to this proposal.  

 
6. Summary of consultation responses 

 
See report at Appendix 1 for all original comments made on the planning application. 
Since the committee deferral on the 24th March 2022, additional information in respect of 
highways impacts has been submitted by the applicants. All previous consultees were 
notified of this additional information. The following comments have arisen from this: 
 
Wiltshire Council Highways (additional response 31/03/22)   
The original highway officer has confirmed the reasoning behind the no exit restriction on 
the B Road alongside the one-way system the school implemented. 
 
You are correct in your analysis. The introduction of a no exit for coaches onto the B road 
was to minimise the impact of large coaches meeting each other and/or other large 
vehicles on the B road, which in places is too narrow to accommodate passing 
movements. For a road to be suitable for easy passing of large vehicles one would expect 
a minimum of 6m which only leaves a meter at most to accommodate cyclists. If between 
boundary treatments a more comfortable width would be 7m. 
 

Page 28



7 

 

At some points the B road narrows to around 4.5m, close to the approach to the junction 
it measures boundary to boundary 6m. This would result in vehicles having to reverse a 
distance to find a place to pass safely, in some cases possibly having to reverse towards 
the junction. This ability to reverse would also be severely limited at peak times where 
coaches are penned in by other traffic. 
 
The decision to minimise the two-way movements at the B road access was to mitigate 
the impact of two-way movement on a road which by virtue of its geometry was not 
suitable to accommodate an increase of two-way movement of larger vehicles. The 
Highway officer has also confirmed that there was no restriction put on the A360 access 
because his assessment was that continued two-way movements would not be a 
detriment to the users of the A360. There was also no securing of the one-way route 
under condition for this reason. 
 
Therefore, it is important to note that the no exit restriction on the B road is in fact 
independent from the use of the A360 access. Therefore, the use of the A360 access for 
two-way movements has always been considered acceptable with the understanding that 
the B road access could be closed for coach use at any time by the school without 
planning permission. It should always be born in mind that the proposal will not result in 
a 100% increase in movements but at the very most a doubling (movements from 9 to 18 
movements). 
 
Wiltshire Council Highways (Response to Technical Note (12/04/22) 
Thank you for the Highways Technical Note and the video. 
 
As discussed previously I have had confirmation from the Highway Engineer who dealt 
with the Cheverell Road access (at the time of planning) he has confirmed that as per the 
explanation in the Technical Note the restriction on two-way movement at this access was 
applied to mitigate the impact of two-way movements of large vehicles on Cheverell Road 
and in particular at the junction. As outlined in the technical report the geometry of 
Cheverell Road requires large vehicles to be located centrally in the road. Though school 
coaches will be arriving and leaving at the same time the road network is also well 
travelled by larger vehicles as well as cars. Therefore, the addition of more coaches is 
highly likely to lead to conflicting vehicle movements to the detriment of all users of the 
highway, including cyclists. 
 
The information provided by the applicant up-holds the discussion I have had with the 
original Highway officer in relation to the restriction of two-way movement at the Cheverell 
Road access and I am satisfied the applicant has demonstrated that the two-way 
movements of the A360 access can be accommodated with minimum impact on the A360 
itself. 
 

7. Publicity 
See report at Appendix 1 for all original comments made on the planning application. 
Since the committee deferral on the 24th March 2022, additional information in respect of 
highways impacts has been submitted by the applicants. During the consultation of this, 
the following comments were raised by 2 third parties: 
 

 The mild tweaking of the proposed site plan by the school fails to address the 
principal problem with the proposal that of access onto the a360 by large 
coaches at peak times in both directions close to a crossroads and pedestrian 
crossing. 

 The school fail to mention that all deliveries will continue to be made to the rear 
of the school by vehicles that are the same size as a school bus. 

Page 29



8 

 

 The schools objective remains to open up development access to the rear of 
the school with the removal of the coach park. The result for the village will be 
regular log jams on the road when 3 local schools’ parents are trying to get their 
children to school. 

 The plans should be rejected as the traffic consequences will be awful, the risk 
to pedestrians will rise further and more stationary traffic will result in high levels 
of pollution at the heart of the village. 

 It is still not believed that a school bus could navigate the turning circle and if 
taxi’s are waiting in their reserved spot then it would become impassable for a 
full sized coach. 

 As far as residents are concerned, this is just an inconvenience. The walk 
around Dauntsey's coach park is just another obstruction for residents wishing 
to move around the village mixing with the traffic on the A360! 

 Dauntseys have plenty of room to spare, the original site of the running track 
would be more suited for a coach park. 

 
 

8. Planning Considerations 
Highways Safety 
See report at Appendix 1 for original comments on this issue.  
 
In addition to what has already been said, the following comments are noted in respect of 
the highway’s issues.  
 

 The Local Highways Authority (LHA) has sought confirmation around the reasons 
why the condition preventing rear access into the school by coaches was placed 
upon consent K/58271/F. It has been confirmed that this was due to the 
inadequate carriageway width of the B3098 to enable two coaches to pass side 
by side (or a coach and another large vehicle). Whilst there is the ability through 
a travel plan to ensure all coaches arrive and leave at the same time to avoid such 
two-way coach conflict, it is not possible to control the impacts of a coach meeting 
for example, an HGV. It is for these reasons that the B3098 is considered an 
unsuitable alternative. 
 

 The additional Technical Note provided by Cole Easdon further explains why the 
B3098 is unsuitable for coaches – including the narrow carriageway width and the 
need for coaches turning into the B3098 from the A360 to use all available junction 
width (something that would not be possible at peaks times when cars are waiting).  

 

 The entrance onto the A360 did not have the same restrictions placed upon it 
when K/5827/F was deliberated i.e., ensuring one way coach movements only, as 
this road was considered sufficient in width to accommodate two-way coach traffic 
(or coach and another large vehicle) without detriment to the users of that 
Highway. The entrance is also of sufficient width and geometry to enable safe 
access and egress to and from the High Street.  

 

 There will not be a 100% increase in the number of coaches using the main 
entrance. Currently there are 14 vehicles (a combination of coaches, midi coaches 
and minibuses) that enter the school via the main drive and exit the school onto 
the B3098. If coaches now exit onto the A360 as well as arrive via it, this means 
there will be 28 coach movements now i.e., a 50% increase. It is the opinion of the 
LHA that these 14 extra movements onto the A360 will not have a detrimental 
impact upon the users of this highway.  

 

Page 30



9 

 

 It must also be noted that whilst at present, all vehicles exit via the B3098, all bar 
one turn right and route back onto the A360. As such, there is virtually the same 
number of buses using the A360 High Street as with the existing situation, just 
from a different, more appropriate, entry point (the school access rather than 
Cheverell Road).  

 

 As noted above, it has already been suggested by the LHA that the B3098 is a 
less suitable road to accommodate two-way movements by large vehicles than 
the A360 is. It has also been clearly set out by the applicants in the additional 
Transport Note. From the point of view of the safety of users of the highway, it 
makes sense to reduce coach traffic on the B3098 and reduce these safety 
concerns. It can be argued that the proposed scheme would see betterment in this 
regard reducing concerns of two-way large vehicle movements on the B3098 and 
removing the safety concerns of coaches traversing through the school site.  

 

 It should also be clearly stated that the school is not applying for access and coach 
parking to the rear of the school site. The decision before this committee is to 
consider the acceptability of the scheme for a coach drop off point to the front of 
the school as opposed to suggesting alternative ideas.  

 

Bearing in mind NPPF para 111 which states that: 
 
“Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network would be severe.” 
 

In light of the above points, what was discussed at the previous committee, and with the 
suggested conditions, your officers struggle to see how a reason for refusal could be 
sustained on the basis that the additional coach movements onto the A360 would have 
an unacceptable impact on the safety of users of that highway or indeed, a severe impact 
on the surrounding road network.  
 
Fallback Position   
Whilst this was emphasised in the original report and at the 24th March Committee, it is 
important to again stress the school’s fallback position with regards to the use of this part 
of the site for the parking of coaches. In relation to this matter, the following points are 
noted.  
 

 As mentioned in the original report to committee, this proposal does not constitute 
a change of use as what is proposed is ancillary to the wider use of the site as 
school. As such, to park coaches and other large vehicles on the current hard 
standings would not require consent from the LPA.  

 

 The school would be entitled to replace the existing hardstanding’s without 
needing planning permission under Part 7, Class N of The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 Under the same 
regulations, the school would be entitled to construct up to 50m2 of additional 
hardstanding without needing the consent of the LPA. The removal of the fencing 
would also not require planning permission.  

 

 When you consider what could be realised under permitted development rights, 
one ends up with the possibility of a scheme not to dissimilar to the one set out in 

Page 31



10 

 

this application. However, one key difference being the absence of any conditions 
or mitigation for potential impacts e.g., engine noise and headlights.  

 

 There is a realistic prospect of the fallback position occurring given the school’s 
desire to remove the safety concerns present with the current coach route through 
the school. It is therefore valid to consider the fallback position when assessing 
the impacts of this proposal.  

 
In light of the above, your officers do not consider that the use of this part of the school 
campus would have any demonstrable impacts over and above what could virtually be 
realised by the fallback scenario (when taking into account mitigation proposed in the 
design scheme and the conditions the LPA would seek to impose on any permission 
given). This includes matters relating to the impact upon neighbour amenity, the character 
and appearance of the conservation area and the setting of heritage assets.   
 
Character and Appearance of the Area 
Whilst the Committee is here to consider a scheme for a coach park to the front of the 
school, it is noted that many of the locals suggested locating the coach park to the rear 
would resolve amongst other things, visual concerns. It was also noted that this point was 
debated at the March 24th Committee.   
 
In respect of this matter, the rear coach drop of area is not designed with two-way traffic 
in mind and is not sufficient in size to accommodate the temporary parking of all of the 
required coaches – hence the schools desire to utalise the proposed site. As such, it is 
clear that a solution to the rear would require an enlargement to the hardstanding, and 
additional infrastructure in the same manner as proposed in this application (lamp 
columns, pavements and hardstanding etc). The visual implications of this on the 
surrounding countryside and views from Strawberry Hill as the built form of Dauntseys is 
pushed out further must be born in mind.  
 
Although we are not here to consider an application to the rear, it would be incorrect to 
suggest that locating the development there would be a satisfactory alternative solution. 
It is the opinion of your officers that character and appearance arguments would definitely 
come into play, as apparent when both applications K/5827/F (for the rear enlarged car 
park) and the running track were considered. The current solution does not see the built 
envelope of Dauntseys expand into green space/countryside. This issue is aside from the 
apparent safety concerns for users of the B3098 if a rear solution was suggested.  
 
Other Issues 
See report at Appendix 1 for all the other issues that were previously considered. These 
remain entirely relevant and clearly set out the suitability of the scheme.  

 
9. Conclusion  

The conclusions in the original report still stand and should be referred to (see Appendix 
1).  
 
Furthermore, the additional information submitted has shown the unsuitability of the 
B3098 to accommodate two-way traffic by large vehicles and so adds weight to the current 
proposal from a highways safety aspect.  
 
Moreover, in light of further information above regarding the fall-back position, your 
officers again conclude that the changes that will be witnessed by the proposal will not be 
adversely harmful over and above what can be realised without planning permission.  
 

Page 32



11 

 

Finally, the decision for members of the committee is to consider the proposal put before 
them, as opposed to the suggestion of an alternative rear location for the coach drop off 
area. Notwithstanding this point, your officers would like to remind members of the 
unsuitability of the B3098 to accommodate this arrangement and the potential visual 
concerns from further development to the rear.   
 
In light of the above, after significant amendment since submission, and with the addition 
of the extra technical information on highways matters, your officers conclude that the 
scheme is considered to accord with the development plan policy and is thus acceptable.  
Accordingly, planning permission is recommended subject to the conditions set out below. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve with conditions 

  

Conditions: (10) 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three `

 years from the date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans and documents: 

 

 Dwg Ref: 2008-2822 C Design & Access Statement  

 Dwg Ref: 2001 C Location Plan 

 Dwg Ref: 2100 H Proposed Site Plan 

 Dwg Ref: 2 200 A Site Section A - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 2 201 A Site Section B - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 2 202 A Site Section C - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 2 203 A Site Section D - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 7310/02 Rev E Engineering Layout 

 Dwg Ref: Figure 1 001 Ecological Parameters Plan 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of development, an updated Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) 

calculation will be carried out, based on the final layout of the site. Submission of the 

unlocked Biodiversity Metric spreadsheet used to calculate BNG is required 

(Biodiversity 

  

Metric 3.0), accompanied by site maps referencing the current measured habitats 

within the site and those proposed for BNG. 

 

REASON: 

In the interests of conserving biodiversity in accordance with paragraph 180 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 33



12 

 

 

4 No external lighting shall be installed on-site until plans showing: 

 

1. the type of light appliance; 

2. the height and position of fitting; 

3. illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the appropriate 

Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institution of Lighting 

Professionals in their publication “The Reduction of Obtrusive Light” Guidance 

Note 01/21 (reference GN01/21); 

4. a lux plot demonstrating that a level of 0.5Lux (unless an alternative lux level is 

agreed with the local planning authority in writing) can be achieved at the edges 

of features with potential function for wildlife; 

5. the operational times of the lighting.   

 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

approved lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 

details, shall not be varied in design and no additional external lighting shall be installed 

without prior written consent of the LPA. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise unnecessary 

light spillage above and outside the development site in the interests of conserving 

biodiversity. 

 

5 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the surface 

water drainage strategy Issue 1 by Cole Easdon Consultants Limited and dated 

September 2021. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained in accordance 

with paragraph 167 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

6 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping (Dwg No. 2100 

G) shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the completion 

of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall 

be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 

stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 

become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 

with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 

accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 

protection of existing important landscape features. 

 

7 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in full accordance with the 

Arboricultural Method Statement by Assured Trees Arboricultural Consultancy and 

dated 7th September 2021. 

 

Page 34



13 

 

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to 

be retained on and adjacent to the site will not be damaged during or post construction 

works taking place and to ensure that as far as possible the work is carried out in 

accordance with current best practice and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning 

Act 1990. 

 

8 Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved the Council shall be provided 

with written evidence of the contract between the school and operator outlining the 

timing of operation of coaches to ensure that vehicles enter and leave at the same 

time, minimising conflicting vehicle movements. This should include agreement to 

ensure that engines are switched off promptly and headlights only used during the 

operation of the vehicles and not left on. The details of which shall be monitored and 

managed by the school via their travel plan and monitored by the Council’s School 

Travel Plan co-ordinator. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users. 

 

9 Prior to first use of the development hereby approved the displaced parking shall be 

replaced within the site as per the submitted details. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users. 

 

Informatives: (1) 

 

 The granting of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct the legal 

line of a public right of way. It cannot be assumed that because planning permission 

has been granted that an order for the diversion or extinguishment of the right of way 

will invariably be made or confirmed. The right of way must be kept open at all times 

until an order has been confirmed and the alternative path has been certified by 

Wiltshire Council. 

 

  

Page 35



14 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Report to Committee 24th March 2022 

 

 

  

Page 36



15 

 

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No. 

Date of Meeting 24th March 2022 

Application Number PL/2021/09496 

Site Address Land at Dauntseys School 

West Lavington 

Proposal Development of a coach, mini-bus and taxi drop-off / pick up area 

and associated infrastructure. 

Applicant Dauntseys School  

Town/Parish Council WEST LAVINGTON  

Electoral Division The Lavington’s (Cllr Muns)  

Grid Ref 400101 153763 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Ruaridh O'Donoghue 

 

Reason for the application being considered by Committee  

The application has been called in by Councillor Muns to consider the environmental 

and highways impacts of the development.  

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of 

the development plan and other material considerations and to consider the 

recommendation that the application be approved. 

 

10. Report Summary 

The main issues to be considered are: 

 Whether the use is acceptable in principle;  

 Whether the scheme would have an acceptable impact on protected species and 

priority habitats (CP 50) 

 Whether the scheme would have an acceptable landscape impact (CP 51); 

 Whether the scheme constitutes high quality design (CP 57);  

 Whether the scheme would have an acceptable impact upon heritage assets (CP 

58) 

 Whether the proposal would have a negative effect upon highway safety including 

if there is sufficient parking for the proposed development (CP 61 and 64); 

 Whether the scheme would lead to increased flood risks elsewhere (CP 67) 

 

11. Site Description 

Page 37



16 

 

The application concerns a parcel of land at Dauntseys School that is located to the west 

of the main driveway. The site is currently made up of a staff car park and a netball/tennis 

court with associated hedging around the perimeter.  

The School is located with limits of development (LoD) of West Lavington which is 

recognised as a Large Village within the WCS.  

 

The site is located within the West Lavington and Littleton Panel Conservation Area. The 

main school building is listed at grade II and opposite the site lie No.’s 7 and 9 Cheverell 

Road that are also grade II listed.  

 

Running through the middle of the site in a broadly roughly north south direction is 

WLAV12, a public right of way (PRoW).  

 

Below is a location map with photographs that show the context of the site. 

 

Page 38



17 

 

 

View of site looking west from Dauntseys School drive          © Google 

 

View from Cheverell Road looking East towards the site          © Google 

Page 39



18 

 

 

View from Cheverell Road at entrance to WLAV12          © Google 

 

View of site looking north from Dauntseys School drive          © Google 

Page 40



19 

 

 

View from High Street looking south towards the application site          © Google 

 

View from High Street looking west towards application site          © Google 

 

12. The Proposal 

The application proposes the development of a coach, mini-bus and taxi drop-off/pick up 

area and associated infrastructure. As part of the application, it is proposed to divert 

WLAV12 around the red line boundary of the site. However, beyond this small diversion 

around the red line boundary, it is no longer proposed to divert any other section of 

WLAV12 that passes through the school. For information purposes, whilst this diversion 

does not need planning consent (it is dealt with under separate legislation), it was included 

as part of the original application but has since been removed (save for the small section 

referred to above).  

 

Below is the proposed plan of the scheme.  

 

Page 41



20 

 

 
 

 

13. Planning Policy and Guidance 

Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 (WCS): 

 CP 12 – Devizes Community Area Strategy 

 CP 50 - Ecology 

 CP 51 – Landscape  

 CP 57 – Ensuring High Quality Design and Place Shaping 

 CP 58 – Ensuring the Conservation of the Historic Environment  

 CP 61 – Transport and New Development  

 CP 67 – Development and Flood Risk 
 
West Lavington Neighbourhood Plan 

 
Section 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) 
 
West Lavington Conservation Area Statement (Supplementary Planning Document) 

 
14. Relevant Planning History 

 
There is no relevant planning history pertaining to this proposal.  

 
15. Summary of consultation responses 

West Lavington Parish Council 

Page 42



21 

 

From lengthy and detailed discussions within the Parish Councillors’ forum and with many 
members of the community, as illustrated by the exceptional number of comments on the 
planning website, the Parish Councillors have decided, by a clear majority, to object to 
the proposal on three aspects. 
 
1. Infrastructure. 
It is accepted that there is need to improve the vehicle/pedestrian interaction within the 
site. However, the restriction on the B3098 has not been identified as the cause. 
Therefore, in seeking a solution, no consideration has been given to the potential 
significance of this infrastructure element. The resulting scheme has been prepared 
without any statistical modelling in a situation where any proposal will affect the accident 
status of features at all connections between the A360, the B3098, the school entrances 
and exits and all pedestrian movement routes. And in the latter case this includes the 
students from all three local schools. Wiltshire Core Strategy Policy 3 encourages the 
requirement for the delivery of infrastructure to support development. In a reversal of this 
requirement this development has not investigated the potential of the infrastructure which 
could deliver a supportive solution. 
 
2. Conservation. 
Our Neighbourhood Plan shows the lime avenue on the front cover and is a very important 
green feature for the villages from all directions. The frontage of our conservation area is 
the street elevations, looking to the east and west, over the length of the A360. A study of 
the location of almost all our Heritage Assets listed in the Neighbourhood Plan illustrates 
that fact. If a planning proposal was being considered anywhere along either of those 
elevations, nothing less than the full weight of conservation planning law would be applied 
as would the NPPF, the Wiltshire Core Strategy, the West Lavington Neighbourhood plan 
(Policies BE1, BE2 and even BE3 as this concerns on/off street parking) and our own 
Village Design Statement. A coach park is not an acceptable introduction in the centre of 
our street scene and particularly because the site for this proposal is elevated above 
adjacent properties on east west and north elevations. 
 
In Planning terms, it was felt that this proposal for the coaches is a request for a Coach 
Station on the site of a number of tennis courts. That is a material change of use and 
requires an application under the Town and Country Planning (use Classes) Order 2005 
amendment. 
 
3. Environmental 
Most of the environmental concerns stem from the change of use. The proposal would 
subject adjacent residences (all at a lower level) to noise, air and light pollution. All 
reductive of current amenity and in the case of air pollution, potentially damaging. A 
proposal to control timing of arrival and departure of vehicles (apart from being outside 
the remit of Planning Legislation controls), did not convince Councillors and did not appear 
to take into account visiting schools sports transport and Summer School activities. 
 
There is particular concern for the lack of provision for the health of the listed avenue of 
lime trees under vehicle weight. They have the protection of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and are key components of our Green Infrastructure. It was not 
accepted that there is any way this load on the root structure can be satisfactorily 
ameliorated to prevent killing the trees. There was also doubt over the capacity of the 
proposed permeable surface to allow rainwater but prevent ingress of oil or diesel spills. 
 
In summary of this consultation report the Councillors consider that although this 
application may meet the requirements of the school, it does so at the expense of the 
immediate infrastructure and the community and they have asked their District Councillor 
to consider calling the application in. 

Page 43



22 

 

 
Councillors were also disappointed to see a new plan submitted to the Wiltshire Council 
website on the final day of the consultation process. This does not provide time for 
councillors to have time to review to see what the changes are or indeed advise members 
of the community that there is potentially a revised plan submitted. 
 
Wiltshire Council Highways 
ROW 
Though more detailed comments from my PROW comments will have been sought I am 
happy that the proposed design shows an adequate diversion route which will keep 
vehicles and pedestrians apart. In its essence the route keeps a north/south connection 
and is maintained. My PROW colleagues will advise on how the applicant is best going 
about the legalities of formal diversion. 
 
Cheverell Road Access 
A point was raised to me about the suitability of the Cheverell Road access being used 
for both ingress and egress of coaches. I note that in 2008 the application granting the 
access secured a condition to ensure that the access was to only be used for egress by 
coaches. I am unable to place my hands on the historical decision/engineer’s note. From 
my observations I would not foresee a safety issue with this access being used for access 
and egress of coaches, though I would have to caveat that with a better understanding of 
the previous decision making. 
 
Lighting 
The car parking area will be above road level so the lighting is not likely to impact on 
passing vehicles, though I am mindful of the adjacent dwellings and lanterns should be 
applied to direct the lighting away from the exterior of the site. 
 
TWO movement at the A360 Access  
I am aware that many concerns have been raised in regard to a two-way movement of 
coaches at the A360 and a possible impact on the road and the pedestrian crossing. 
The information provided suggests that at peak time (drop off and pickups a total of 9 
coaches are in operation) I do not consider this to be a significant number to 
accommodate on the road network and in turn at the junction. The access on the A360 
currently takes at least 50% of the movements (ingress) and there will be at times when 
coaches are already having to wait on the A360 while other vehicles take access. 
There is space on the A360 to allow vehicles to pass a stationary vehicle (if they are safe 
to do so). The markings on the road e.g., Stop line, pedestrian crossing and keep clear 
markings will restrict/encourage waiting vehicles from waiting too long. 
 
I appreciate the concerns raised in regard to a possible impact on the users of the crossing 
but the effect of a vehicle turning into the site is a current arrangement. I acknowledge 
that there is a concern that having two-way movements will increase the likelihood of 
vehicles waiting on the A360. I am minded that the numbers being considered are just 9 
coaches, therefore the time taken for the vehicles to leave the site will not be excessive 
and as such a period of waiting on the A360 ( if any ) will not be excessive. 
 
It should be noted that the NPPF states that an application can only be refused on highway 
grounds if the proposal will result in a significant detrimental effect on the users of the 
highway. Given the current situation (50% of the movements – ingress – are already 
taking place) and that the numbers of coaches are low I am satisfied that the impact is 
unlikely to be considered as significant and severe and may not be considered as such 
by the planning Inspectorate if the application goes to appeal. 
 

Page 44



23 

 

Some improvement could be made by providing a passing area within the access road 
site, so vehicles are deterred from having to reverse out of the site or into the site. This 
does not have to be immediately at the site entrance but will provide a bit of flexibility 
within the site. I note concerns raised that there could be an increase in vehicles waiting 
on the A360 at peak times. However, the true peak for a road such as the A360 is 
associated with work traffic with school traffic usually falling outside of this time. 
 
The applicant has outlined a mode of operation for the site which will encourage to a 
robust extent access to and from the site by coaches. They note as part of the operation 
licence of the coaches there will be a requirement for them to remain on site to allow all 
coaches to be boarded (dismounted) to encourage vehicles to access and leave at the 
same time. I am happy that this can be conditioned and monitored. I advise a conditioned 
worded in a similar vein to the below: 
 
The proposed parking area will not come into operation until the Council is provided with 
written evidence of the contract between the school and operator outlining the timing of 
operation of coaches to ensure that vehicles enter and leave at the same time, minimising 
conflicting vehicle movements. The details of which shall be monitored and managed by 
the school via their travel plan and monitored by the Council’s School Travel Plan co-
ordinator. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users.  
 
Therefore, in summary. I am minded that based on the information provided there is no 
reason to raise a highway refusal on the proposal. I am happy to offer no highway 
objection subject to the following conditions: 
 
No operation on the site shall come into use until the displaced parking is replaced within 
the site as per the submitted details. 
 
No operation on the site shall commence until the PROW has been diverted and 
constructed as per details approved by the Council’s PROW Team. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users.  
 
Wiltshire Council Public Rights of Way (First Comments) 
Objects to the diversion as it was not meet the requirements for a diversion order. In 
summary, they recommended that the best course of action for the applicant, would be to 
divert WLAV12 onto a path around the coach park with a surface similar to that proposed 
for the other paths. 
 
Wiltshire Council Public Rights of Way (Revised Comments) 
I am happy to withdraw my objection based on the revised plan submitted (2008, 2100, 
G).  The proposed footpath diversion is acceptable to the specification shown in this 
drawing.  A diversion order must be applied for, made and the new route constructed and 
certified prior to any works taking place which will affect the original route of the footpath.  
The additional section of path to be dedicated between the site and the High Street can 
be included on the diversion application as far as the site boundary.  The final section of 
this path circled in red below is situated on highway verge so this section will not need to 
be dedicated but will need to be constructed under a Short Form S278 agreement as 
advised by Highways (Hannah Jones).   
 
Informative: 
The granting of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct the legal line 
of a public right of way. It cannot be assumed that because planning permission has been 

Page 45



24 

 

granted that an order for the diversion or extinguishment of the right of way will invariably 
be made or confirmed. The right of way must be kept open at all times until an order has 
been confirmed and the alternative path has been certified by Wiltshire Council. 
 
Wiltshire Council Conservation  
Object any reasons given? 
 
Wiltshire Council Ecologist (First response) 
The Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (aLyne ecology 2021) shows a biodiversity net 
gain on site however the unlocked Biodiversity Metric spreadsheet has not been 
submitted, nor referenced to suitable site drawings, therefore it is not possible to asses 
where the net gain will be accommodated. 
 
The Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (aLyne ecology 2021) recommended the 
implementation of three bird boxes and two bat boxes. The proposed location of these 
needs to be included on the site plan. 
 
CP50 states ‘All development proposals shall incorporate appropriate measures to avoid 
and reduce disturbance of sensitive wildlife species and habitats throughout the lifetime 
of the development. The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report (aLyne ecology 2021) 
‘Lighting that is required for security or safety reasons, should use a lamp of no greater 
than 2000 lumens (150 Watts) and should comprise sensor activated lamps.’ However, 
the lightning plan (Kingfisher lighting 2021) shows lamps are 8990 lumens. Please adjust 
to ensure that the lighting strategy aligns with the ecologists’ recommendations. 
 
Wiltshire Council Ecologist (Second response) 
In order to address this without further delay, I suggest that an Ecological Parameters 
Plan is submitted for approval. This should be a scaled site drawing based on a map of 
existing built and undeveloped areas within the red line boundary and in the wider blue 
line area. Areas where biodiversity net gain will not be achieved (i.e. areas of hard 
standing, sports pitches etc., should be hatched in one colour and all areas where it will 
be possible to deliver biodiversity net gain in another colour. I note that the area within 
the blue line, outside of the red line is quite large and should provide sufficient sized areas 
for enough habitat creation to demonstrate no net loss of biodiversity within the site, as 
required by NPPF and CP50, as well as a reasonable amount of net gain for biodiversity. 
The requirement for submission of the Biodiversity Metric, prior to commencement of 
works, will then be subject of a condition, as below. 
 
They confirmed that lighting can be controlled via condition as well as the drawing 
showing the location of the bat and bird boxes.  
 
Wiltshire Council Ecologist (Final response) 
They are happy with the submitted Ecological Parameters Plan and the Site Plan 
indicating the provision of bat and bird boxes for the above application. They have no 
objections subject to two conditions - one for lighting and one for BNG detail as in my 
response dated 9/3/22. 
 

16. Publicity 
The application was advertised by way of a site notice and neighbour notification letters. 
As a result of this exercise around 80 letters of objections have been received. The 
principal comments put forward are highlighted below: 
 

 It is much more than just the nine coaches stated by Highways Officer.  

 Timings of drop off and pick up are within peak travel times. 

Page 46



25 

 

 Noise air and light pollution from this coach park.  

 Location will impact upon the listed cottages off Cheverell Road.  

 Impact upon views and visual amenity  

 Elimination of a well-used public right of way  

 Impacts upon highway safety 

 The increase in traffic will affect the ability to access properties safely  

 Already traffic problems on the A360, Lavington Lane and Cheverell Road 

 This parking area is to be constructed within a conservation area close to listed 
buildings and private residences and will in no way enhance this area, nor the 
approach to the main school building nor the views of the village next to the 
crossroads. 

 It is time that the restriction on allowing coaches to enter at the rear of the school 
should be re-examined. Is it now time for coaches to be allowed to enter and 
depart at the rear of the school where there is plenty of space and security lighting 
already in place? It would seem that delivery vehicles are to be permitted to enter 
and exit the school site from the Cheverell Road so why not coaches and 
minibuses? 

 Diversion route of the PRoW is still unacceptable and is a much more undesirable 
route which affects the historic lime trees and the setting of heritage assets 

 The coach park will be visually intrusive on the setting of the school and 
headmasters house and driveway and disrupt the symmetry. It will damage the 
setting of the grade II listed main school building. Whilst the present car park etc. 
does not add anything, it is fairly well screened. All this will be ripped up for large 
expanse of tarmac.  

 It should be located to the rear where heritage impacts would not be an issue 

 The B3098 is signed for HGV traffic so why can’t it be used for entry and exit into 
the school. 

 No data on the impacts on peak flows on the A360 

 Use of the B3098 would be safer than entry and exit onto the A360 with its 
staggered junction and zebra crossing.  

 Harmful impact to historic lime trees on school drive – damage to roots etc through 
development  

 Will significantly affect the quality of village life  

 Will coaches even be able to turn in the turning circle provided 

 Tree planting will impact light to our property and reduce the safety of the PRoW.  

 Diversion of the footpath is totally unacceptable and will offer a far more dangerous 
route to users that the current one as the footpath on the A360 is very narrow.  

 This right of access along the PRoW predates the school.  

 There is no separate pavement along the school driveway which will not be used 
by all coach traffic. How is this safer for school pupils? 

 Plans should be to the rear of the school with the school providing a strip of land 
at the junction of Cheverell Road with the A360 to allow Wiltshire Council to make 
improvement works.  

 Current staff parking to the front is unauthorised as permission was never granted 
for it. Use of parking to the rear seems sufficient so it is not necessary. Its removal 
would be an enhancement.  

 The coach park will be used more often than claimed and during school holidays 
too when the school runs activities  

 The safeguarding advantages to the school are far outweighed by the negative 
safety impacts on the general public of the proposed plans. 

 The new proposal for the coach movements within the school greatly increases 
the chance of an accident than is currently the case 

Page 47



26 

 

 The privacy of our home will be directly impacted as two windows, one bedroom 
and one reception room, in our property are overlooked by the proposed site and 
will allow hundreds of people to have direct views into our home which is 
approximately 14 metres from where the coaches will park.  

 The proposed development would be a ‘blot on the landscape’ which would impact 
the countryside that as villagers we enjoy. 

 The existing situation is not unsafe for pupils of the school.  

 Loss of views to Strawberry Hill from the PRoW with the hedging planting will affect 
the users enjoyment. 

 Why does lighting need to be so high compared with existing driveway lighting at 
the school.  

 Consultation was insufficient and ot enough time given.  

 This is another example of the privileged few riding roughshod over the rights of 
the many and should not be permitted. 

 Impact of lighting on local ecology 

 Agree with the principal of achieving a biodiversity gain but it is the extent of 
planting, which will enclose the open playing fields with effectively a solid green 
wall for a significant part of the year, that is unacceptable. 

 New PRoW route is not safer, moves away from features of interest, lowers the 
quality and diversity of views, is longer and its physical features would be worse 
than the current route.  

 If rerouting the PRoW is for the safety of the pupils, why are they allowed out of 
the school? 

 The public footpath passes the rear of my property and is used very frequently by 
local dog walkers and joggers etc. and to interfere with the route of this path & to 
force people to use a busy public highway, with no footpath in places, is unfair 
considering this pathway right has been in force longer than Dauntseys School. 

 Diversion route not safe for wheelchair losers as pavement is too narrow 

 The question of safeguarding, while at the forefront of any school, in this case is 
a bit of a red herring insomuch as there are numerous, unrestricted points of 
ingress to Dauntseys school which pose the same potential risk to students 
however, to my knowledge, there have been no incidents regarding this section of 
the PRoW. 

 Do not ruin our beautiful countryside to make a private school even more private 
without a care for the village it’s situated. 

 If this footpath is closed it will mean the footpath at St Joseph’s Catholic Church 
will have no connecting footpath 

 A further look at the drainage calculations suggests that an inappropriate safety 
factor has been used. Using the standard factor of two and not reviewing its use 
may potentially mean the system floods more easily and has less tolerance built 
in. CERIA 753 should be consulted when designing infiltration systems etc 

 It appears that the soakaway tests were not conducted as per the BRE365 
guidance where the trial pit should be filled three times and the test recorded on 
the third fill. This is to ensure the ground is appropriately saturated as you may 
find after several rain fall events 

 Tests were also carried out in one location which whilst limits the understanding 
of the appropriateness of soakaways it noted the site is small in size 

 There is no catchment area plan to demonstrate the catchment size, nor a flood 
flow drainage to demonstrate the exceedance event.  

 Maintenance doesn’t appear to site hydraulic cleaning which may be required for 
deep cleaning of permeable paving and removal of hydrocarbons that may leak 
from busses particularly old ones! 

Page 48



27 

 

 Changes in site levels will make the buses more visible where once vegetation 
stood.  

 Dauntseys could paint the surface of the coach park mauve and yellow! 

 Previous planning issues arising from the school seem to have shown that local 
opinion is sometimes neither sought or respected. 

 The closure of the footpath that gives the village a safe walking route is 
unacceptable and will cut parts of the village off from each other.  

 
 
17. Planning Considerations 

Principle of Development    
There are no ‘in principle’ policies that deal with this type of development. The use is 
associated with/ancillary to the wider use of the site as a school. It is therefore not a 
change of use of the land and consent is merely required for the operational development 
i.e., the laying out of a hardstanding, pavements, fencing and lamp columns.  
 
The parking of the coaches in this location is something the school could do without the 
need to obtain any form of planning consent i.e., if they did not carry out any operational 
development. However, to be clear, because they have chosen to lay a hardstanding, 
create pavements and erect fencing and lighting, planning permission is required.   
 
Design / Visual Impact  
The scheme has been designed to enhance the traffic flow through the school with the 
principal aim of improving pupil and staff safety by removing the need for coaches to travel 
through the school.  
 
Broken down into the basic components the scheme proposes a hardstanding for 
coaches/minibuses, pavements for pedestrian flow, some lighting columns and 
fencing/railings. Subject to appropriate controls, these components are considered 
acceptable in design terms and in any event, do not have opportunities in design terms 
for a significant degree of variance. These appropriate controls are discussed in further 
sections of the report.   
 
The site in its present form is largely made up of hardstanding (car park and disused 
tennis courts) with a small strip of green space running between the two along the line of 
WLAV12. The proposed site will have a broadly similar level of hardstanding so in respect 
of this, there is little objection in visual terms.  
 
The current areas of hardstanding are bounded by hedging and 3.1-5m high sports 
fencing. The proposed boundary treatment around the coach park will be predominately 
native hedging with 1.2m high hazel hurdles behind (the benefit of these being that they 
will dimmish over time as the hedging matures so will not be a permanent solid barrier 
which is a preference in both design and visual terms). However, a small section (approx. 
20m) that adjoins the headmasters back garden will compromise 1.8m high close boarded 
fencing in front of the hedging to maintain privacy levels, and to help reduce noise and 
emissions from vehicles. It is noted that there is already 1.8m close boarding fencing 
around the Headmasters House so it is not introducing an alien component into the 
landscape and, given its location, not a particularly visible one either (its sits perpendicular 
to the Cheverell Road). In summary, in relation to the above aspects, these changes result 
in a broadly similar character to what is seen currently and would not therefore constitute 
adverse visual harm.   
 
The PRoW that currently runs through the site is to be diverted around the front of the 
coach park (closest to the High Street). It will be bound by estate railing on the side facing 

Page 49



28 

 

Cheverell Road and the High Street. Whilst at a higher elevation, it will sit behind the 
existing roadside hedging and planting. There will also be some additional planting in 
respect of the side fronting the High Street. Additionally, there will be some steps down 
from the diverted PRoW onto the High Street. Although these changes of course differ 
from the present visual appearance of the site frontage in this location, they are not drastic 
changes that are deemed to cause any adverse visual harm – it is noted that at this 
location, there is quite heavy influence from built form that does have an urbanising effect 
(houses and road infrastructure/furniture). It is also considered that this diversion will not 
have an adverse impact on the user’s enjoyment of this PRoW as it is a relatively small 
diversion from the current route that is not already without its urban influences (a school 
car park and tennis courts with built form visible).     
 
The site will have some lamp columns (9 columns approx. 6m high) installed around the 
edges of the site which is of course introducing a new feature – although not an entirely 
alien feature as they are present along the High Street. Such lighting will only need to be 
in use in winter when it is dark, at school drop off and collection times. As a result of the 
above points, their physical presence and the impact from lighting will not have an adverse 
impact on the visual amenities of the area or indeed to dark skies (noting the location 
within a large village and the lighting plans shows 1-0.5 lux levels outside of the site).  
 
The front of Dauntseys sits at the heart of West Lavington/Littleton Panel with urban 
character and influence from the High Street’s buildings and road furniture. Whilst the 
back of the site relates more to the countryside, it is the front part of the site where the 
development is proposed. Bearing in mind these urban influences and the existing 
character of the site, it is difficult to see how this form of development can be considered 
drastically different to the present and certainly not a change that could be construed as 
having an adverse impact on landscape character or visual amenity. An appropriate 
response has been provided in landscaping terms to ensure the impacts of the 
development are softened so far as practically possible in accordance with the aims of 
Core Policy 51 of the WCS.   
 
Whilst acknowledging the site currently does not have minibuses or coaches parked on 
it, their presence would not be considered to cause adverse harm to the character and 
appearance of the landscape. The presence of parked cars/vehicles of this scale is not of 
itself sufficient reasoning to withhold planning consent on visual grounds. Notably when 
you consider there is already a vehicular presence on the site through the existing staff 
car park, and the fact that the use of this part of the site in its current form, for the parking 
of larger vehicles, would not require planning consent.    

 
In respect of Core Policies 51 (landscape) and 57 (design), your officers contend that the 
scheme is in broad accordance with these policies (noting that amenity will be covered in 
the next chapter of this report).  
 
Neighbour Amenity 
There are two main issues here. The effects of the light pollution upon neighbouring 
properties along the Cheverell Road, and the impact of the comings and goings of 
coaches etc. at collection and drop off times.   
 
In respect of lighting, the hazel hurdles around the site will provide sufficient instant 
screening prior to the establishment of the Yew hedging to ensure the light from coach 
headlights does not shine into the properties across the way on Cheverell Road. 
Furthermore, this can be managed more generally through a wider travel plan to be 
submitted to the LPA via a planning condition. Within such a plan, the LPA would expect 
to see an agreement with coach operators and the school to ensure headlights are only 
used during the operation of the vehicles and not left on. 

Page 50



29 

 

 
The lamp columns will introduce more lighting into an area that is presently not brightly lit. 
However, the 9 columns have been designed to minimise light spill out of the area. To 
this end, a lighting plan has been submitted which shows approximately 1 lux at Cheverell 
Road and approx. 0.5 lux at neighbouring properties. This level of light spill is low enough 
to ensure no adverse impacts upon adjoining properties. However, it is noted the 
luminance level of the lighting conflicts with the advice in the ecology statement and as 
such needs revising. A condition requiring detailing of lighting is to be imposed to address 
this. However, from an amenity point of view there are no concerns with the lighting set 
out which is brighter than ecologists would like.   
 
With regards to the comings and goings of coaches, it should in the first instance be noted 
that all coaches presently enter Dauntseys via the main drive and exit via the Cheverell 
Road. Whilst the drop off and collection point is to the rear of the school away from 
residential properties, it is fair to say that the coach traffic serving the school already 
features in this area and will be part of the background noise levels. Furthermore, the staff 
car park currently on the site will also be contributing to this current background noise (as 
well as light pollution in the form of car headlights). The additionality of coaches 
manoeuvring into parking spaces to drop off and collect pupils on this part of the site will 
of course add some further noise. However, when you take account of the existing 
position it would be difficult to suggest this would cause adverse harm. Engine noise can 
be mitigated in a similar way to headlights through the wider travel plan mentioned 
previously. It would be expected to see an agreement with coach operators and the school 
to ensure engines are promptly switched off and not left idling.  
 
Turning to other amenity issues (overbearing impacts, loss of light and privacy), it is not 
considered that the introduction of a coach park would have an adverse impact on the 
reasonable living conditions of nearby properties with regards to these points given the 
limited level of development proposed. In addition to this point, the site is already used for 
staff parking and the school would be entitled to use the area for other activities ancillary 
to use of the wider site as a school.  Even as a parking area where engineering works 
such as the hardstanding and lighting columns not proposed. 
 
Your officers are satisfied that in so far as amenity standards are expressed in point vii of 
Core Policy 57, this application would be in accordance.   
 
Impact to Trees 
The design of the coach park has been developed around the existing trees to ensure 
that they are safe guarded. The submitted Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) sets 
out the practises surrounding how construction will take place to protect the existing 
mature trees on the site.  
 
In summary, two trees, one hedge and a small section of a further hedge are proposed 
for removal to facilitate the proposals. Mitigation for the tree removals is proposed through 
a comprehensive landscape planting scheme prepared by NVB Landscape. With regards 
the RPA of the mature lime trees it is proposed to construct the coach park using a 200mm 
deep Cellular Confinement Ground Protection System to prevent damage to underlying 
roots using no dig construction techniques to protect from machinery damage. Permeable 
paving is to be used to improve water and gaseous exchange to tree roots and engineered 
solutions have been devised where such porous material is not practically possible due 
to the weight of the coaches. This is all in accordance with BRE standards.  
 
Subject to development being carried out in accordance with the AMS and the 
landscaping scheme by NVB, there will no harm to retained trees on site. Such matters 
can be secured via conditions. In doing so, the contribution the existing trees on site make 

Page 51



30 

 

to the character and appearance of the area, notably the CA, can be maintained to the 
ensure amenity levels and tree stocks are preserved.  
 
Impact on Heritage Assets 
In respect of No.’s 7-9 Cheverell Road, the B3098 provides a clear divide between the 
curtilage of the dwellings and the school. The soft boundary treatments and Hazel hurdles 
proposed along this side of the site will help to maintain the bucolic nature of the lane and 
ensure that the setting of these properties is not compromised to a harmful extent. The 
presence of coaches through a small part of the day would not be sufficient in itself to 
raise an objection on heritage grounds regarding the impact they may have on the setting 
of these cottages. This is a temporary effect and one which the school could effectively 
do on the existing hard standing without the need to obtain planning permission. 
Furthermore, the site fronts a road where these coaches already pass.  
 
The site lies approx. 85m from the main school building which is grade II listed. In light of 
the landscape considerations above, it is considered that the character change to this part 
of the site will not be so significant such that, coupled with the separation distance 
involved, the development will not have an adverse impact on the setting of this listed 
building. The presence of coaches will obviously be a new feature within the view but they 
are not considered to be so intrusive or have an impact that would render the proposal as 
having “substantial harm” to the setting of the heritage asset. Furthermore, the layout of 
the site has been designed to ensure these coaches park on the RHS of the site when 
facing the main school building to minimise the impact they will have on the views up 
towards the school. In addition, coaches do travel up the drive and pass the main school 
building presently and, there is nothing to stop them from parking on the existing areas of 
hard standing.   
 
With regards the Conservation Area (CA), a similar conclusion is drawn to the above. The 
changes to this part of the site are not so pronounced such that the character and 
appearance of the CA would be materially harmed. There are a number of modern urban 
influences in this part of the CA that have an effect on its character – notably the road 
infrastructure around the High Street junction with Cheverell Road and Lavington Lane 
and the more modern buildings constructed in this part of the village. Whilst this too will 
be a modern development, it is considered that with the proposed landscaping and 
boundary treatments, its influence can be reduced to an broadly neutral level – bearing in 
mind that, of the permanent development on this site, it will principally be the lamp 
columns that are visible from public vantage points (the hard surfacing should be 
screened for the most part by the hedging and due to the variance in site levels to the 
High Street). As previously discussed, the nature of parked coaches will not amount to 
any significant harm to the CA and can be parked on the site without the need for planning 
permission in any event.   
 
Overall, it is considered that the scheme is in accordance with the Core Policy 58 of the 
WCS as there will be a broadly neutral impact upon affected heritage assets i.e., no harm.  
 
Highways Safety 
The critical point here is that the Local Highways Authority (LHA) have not objected to the 
application subject to conditions. Such conditions are considered reasonable and 
necessary and have been recommended to be imposed on any permissions given. 
 
In more detail, the NPPF is clear in that applications can only be refused on highway 
grounds where the proposal will result in significant detrimental effects on users of the 
highway (paragraph 111). Within this context, one must consider the present situation 
which is as follows:  
 

Page 52



31 

 

 all of the coaches to Dauntseys arrive via the main driveway 

 whilst they have the option of exiting onto the B3098 or back through the school 
and onto the A360, it seems they exit onto the B3098 (in effect a 1-way system). 

 50% of coach movements associated with this application are already occurring 
into the school’s main entrance and thus already having an effect on the adjoining 
A360.  

 
The proposal will see coaches exiting onto the A360 from the main drive as well which 
naturally results in additional movements which will be displaced from the Cheverell Road. 
That said, given the low numbers of coaches involved, the LHA do not consider this 
increase to be significant when compared with the existing situation, such that an 
objection could be sustained under NPPF para 111. Furthermore, the operational plan 
outlined by the school (to be conditioned) will ensure all coaches arrive and leave at the 
same time in order to minimise disruption and ensure little to no conflict arises between 
entering and exiting coaches.  
 
The LHA have also considered the A360 as being wide enough at this point to enable 
vehicles to pass coaches waiting to turn into the school (provided it is safe to do so). As 
such this will help ease the flow of traffic if a situation does arise whereby a coach is 
waiting on the A360 (presumably this is the same as what must happen now). It is also 
considered that any coach waiting to turn into the school is unlikely to be waiting for long 
and therefore any delay to other people’s journey times would not be consequential 
(probably around the 2-minute mark as suggested when discussing the matter with the 
LHA).  
 
Concerns have been raised over the impact to users of the existing crossing near to the 
entrance of the school caused by coaches. Coach drivers should be aware of the Highway 
Code which does not allow them to obstruct the crossing nor wait for significant periods 
of time within the zig zag road markings which are matters that site outside of planning 
legislation but, nonetheless allay concerns here. Furthermore, the LHA do not consider 
there to be a significant increase in movements as a result of this application.  
 
Also, concern has been raised over those who walk to the school via the main drive which 
at the entrance, presently does not have a separate footway. The PRoW diversion 
includes steps up from the High Street around the coach park linking up to the existing 
footway towards the back of the main school drive. This provides a suitable alternative 
and safer walking route for pupils that minimises conflict with vehicles. Accordingly, any 
increase in traffic should not cause an issue here with this route in place. It would be 
expected of the school that they encourage pupils to use this route into the school when 
walking if problems are considered to arise. This should lead to a small benefit in safety 
terms.    
 
Concerns have been raised over the volume of coaches etc that enter and exit Dauntseys 
beyond the coaches dropping off and collecting pupils during the school week e.g., for 
sport fixtures. However, this is an existing situation and cannot be subject to controls 
under this planning application as they are entitled to do this presently without any 
restrictions from the LPA.  
 
It should be noted in any event that this application is not seeking to increase vehicular 
movements to and from the school. The same numbers of coaches will enter and exit the 
school under the proposed scheme as there are now. There cannot therefore be 
arguments raised on increased pollution levels in the area as these coach movements 
already occur within the Dauntseys school campus.   
 

Page 53



32 

 

In summary, it is not considered that there are sufficient grounds to raise objection to this 
application under highways safety grounds – principally, in light of consultation response 
received from the LHA and the thresholds placed under NPPF para 111. 
 
Public Rights of Way  
In light of the amended plans, the PRoW Team are content with withdrawing their 
objection. The proposed footpath diversion is acceptable to the specification shown in this 
drawing. The PRoW Team have set out that a diversion order must be applied for, made 
and the new route constructed and certified prior to any works taking place which will 
affect the original route of the footpath. This is something the school must do in liaison 
with the PRoW Team at the Council to avoid any risks of enforcement action.  
 
All previous comments relating to the wider footpath diversion are noted but, as the 
scheme has been amended, are no longer relevant to the scheme before the Committee. 
It should also be noted that hedge planting does not require planning permission and 
therefore can still be carried out should Dauntseys wish to do so on the parts of the 
WLAV12 that cross their site.   

 
Ecological Impact 
The latest consultation response from the Ecologist confirmed that lighting details can be 
requested via condition. Your officers recommend a suitable condition to this effect in the 
interests of conserving biodiversity. A lower level than currently set out will not conflict 
with the neighbour amenity points raised above.    
 
The Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (aLyne ecology 2021) recommended the 
implementation of three bird boxes and two bat boxes. The proposed location of these 
needs to be agreed with the LPA. The drawing showing these features has been 
submitted to the LPA and your officers are happy to accept this in line with the Ecologists 
recommendations. There is no longer a need for this to be conditioned.  
 
The Council’s Ecologist has been unable to assess where the net gain will be 
accommodated on the site as the unlocked Biodiversity Metric spreadsheet has not been 
submitted, nor referenced to suitable site drawings. However, there is sufficient space 
within the site to enable biodiversity net gain to be accommodated. The ecologist has 
recommended the submission of an ecological parameters plan safeguarding areas for 
biodiversity net gain (BNG) to be accommodated. This has been submitted and is 
acceptable. The requirement for the submission of a Biodiversity Metric, prior to 
commencement of works, can be the subject of a condition to ensure net gain is achieved.  
 
In light of the above, and through the use of the suggested conditioned, it is contended 
that there is no longer any objection on ecological grounds. The scheme is thus in 
accordance with Core Policy 50 of the WCS and paragraph 180 fo the NPPF.  
 
Drainage/Flooding 
The current site compromises approx. 2600m2 of impermeable hardstanding. Drainage 
investigations on site have concluded that run off from this hardstanding is not currently 
collected and presumably flows overland and then to ground via infiltration. BRE365 
testing has been done on site to show that infiltration is possible on the site. 
 
The proposed scheme sees a very similar level of impermeable hardstanding (due to the 
weight of the coaches porous surfacing is not possible). However, this hard standing will 
have drainage channels/gullies built into it which clearly differs from the existing 
arrangement. The drainage channels will discharge surface water to a permeable 
subbase located beneath the tarmac surfacing which has been designed to accommodate 

Page 54



33 

 

storage requirements to meet NPPF guidance (1 in 100 events storm event plus climate 
change).  
 
Subject to the development being carried out in accordance with the approved details, 
there will be no increased flood risks outside of the development site. The requirements 
of NPPF policy and Core Policy 67 of the WCS are thus satisfied.  
 

18. Conclusion (The Planning Balance) 
There are no ‘in principle’ policies that indicate this form of development should be 
considered unacceptable.  
 
The scheme will not have an adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the 
area and is thus considered to be in broad accordance with Core Policies 51 and 57 of 
the WCS. 
 
The proposal will have a broadly neutral impact upon heritage assets and thus in the 
absence of identified harm, is considered to comply with Core Policy 58 of the WCS. It is 
noted that the greatest impact is from the presence of coaches on the site but, this is a 
temporary impact during the periods of school drop off and collection and therefore not a 
substantive ground in which to attach harm to.  
 
Whilst considerable objection has been raised in respect of the highways impacts of the 
development from locals, the LHA is satisfied that the scheme will not have a severe 
impact on users of the adjoining highway (A360). In light of NPPF para 111 they have not 
raised objection to the scheme.  
 
Subject to appropriate conditions, there are no technical objections raised with the 
application against ecology, trees or drainage.  
 
In light of the above, after significant amendment since submission, the scheme is 
considered to accord with the development plan policy and is thus acceptable.  
Accordingly, planning permission is recommended. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve with conditions 

  

Conditions: (10) 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three `

 years from the date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans and documents: 

 

 Dwg Ref: 2008-2822 C Design & Access Statement  

 Dwg Ref: 2001 C Location Plan 

 Dwg Ref: 2100 H Proposed Site Plan 

 Dwg Ref: 2 200 A Site Section A - Existing and Proposed  

Page 55



34 

 

 Dwg Ref: 2 201 A Site Section B - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 2 202 A Site Section C - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 2 203 A Site Section D - Existing and Proposed  

 Dwg Ref: 7310/02 Rev E Engineering Layout 

 Dwg Ref: Figure 1 001 Ecological Parameters Plan 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of development, an updated Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) 

calculation will be carried out, based on the final layout of the site. Submission of the 

unlocked Biodiversity Metric spreadsheet used to calculate BNG is required 

(Biodiversity 

  

Metric 3.0), accompanied by site maps referencing the current measured habitats 

within the site and those proposed for BNG. 

 

REASON: 

In the interests of conserving biodiversity in accordance with paragraph 180 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

4 No external lighting shall be installed on-site until plans showing: 

 

6. the type of light appliance; 

7. the height and position of fitting; 

8. illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the appropriate 

Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institution of Lighting 

Professionals in their publication “The Reduction of Obtrusive Light” Guidance 

Note 01/21 (reference GN01/21); and, 

9. a lux plot demonstrating that a level of 0.5Lux (unless an alternative lux level is 

agreed with the local planning authority in writing) can be achieved at the edges 

of features with potential function for wildlife, 

 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

approved lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 

details, shall not be varied in design and no additional external lighting shall be installed 

without prior written consent of the LPA. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise unnecessary 

light spillage above and outside the development site in the interests of conserving 

biodiversity. 

 

5 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the surface 

water drainage strategy Issue 1 by Cole Easdon Consultants Limited and dated 

September 2021. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained in accordance 

with paragraph 167 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 56



35 

 

 

6 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping (Dwg No. 2100 

G) shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the completion 

of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall 

be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 

stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 

become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 

with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 

accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 

protection of existing important landscape features. 

 

7 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in full accordance with the 

Arboricultural Method Statement by Assured Trees Arboricultural Consultancy and 

dated 7th September 2021. 

 

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to 

be retained on and adjacent to the site will not be damaged during or post construction 

works taking place and to ensure that as far as possible the work is carried out in 

accordance with current best practice and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning 

Act 1990. 

 

8 Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved the Council shall be provided 

with written evidence of the contract between the school and operator outlining the 

timing of operation of coaches to ensure that vehicles enter and leave at the same 

time, minimising conflicting vehicle movements. This should include agreement to 

ensure that engines are switched off promptly and headlights only used during the 

operation of the vehicles and not left on. The details of which shall be monitored and 

managed by the school via their travel plan and monitored by the Council’s School 

Travel Plan co-ordinator. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users. 

 

9 Prior to first use of the development hereby approved the displaced parking shall be 

replaced within the site as per the submitted details. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the highway users. 

 

Informatives: (1) 

 

 The granting of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct the legal 

line of a public right of way. It cannot be assumed that because planning permission 

has been granted that an order for the diversion or extinguishment of the right of way 

will invariably be made or confirmed. The right of way must be kept open at all times 

Page 57



36 

 

until an order has been confirmed and the alternative path has been certified by 

Wiltshire Council. 

 

Page 58



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2021 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7a PL/2021/09496 - Land at Dauntsey's School, West Lavington
	PL.2021.09496 - Aerial Plan
	PL.2021.09496 - Location Plan (1)


